
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA: 

1. CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

5. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 28, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 

6. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS- AUGUST 2016 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Approval of Long Range Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

b. Information Technology Services 

c. Transcription Update 

d. QuickBooks Update 

e. Used Bus Purchases 

f. Internal Revenue Service 

g. Website Update 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Executive Director Annual Review Process Discussion 

b. Set Date:  Board Policy Committee Meeting 

c. Drive Less Connect Presentation 

d. Transit Asset Management:  Designation of Accountable Executive 

10. CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Oregon Public Transportation Plan 

b. Oregon State University Extension Service 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORT 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

14. OTHER ITEMS 

 

 

Sunset Empire Transportation District 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
THURSDAY SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

9:00 AM 
Astoria Transit Center, 900 Marine Drive Astoria, OR 

1



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER- Chair Kathy Kleczek called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  
 

2. ROLL CALL: 
Present: Chair Kathy Kleczek, Vice Chair Paul Lewicki, Commissioner Kevin Widener, Commissioner Jim Servino and 
Commissioner Carol Gearin. Commissioner MacDonald and Commissioner Gaebel was excused.  
 

Staff Present: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, Finance Officer Al Hernandez, IS/Transit Center Manager John Layton, 
HR/Payroll Officer, Tami Carlson, RideCare Manager Jason Jones, Operations Manager Scott Earls, Mobility Management 
Coordinator Shana Verley, Paratransit Supervisor Jennifer Geisler and Transportation Options Specialist Shasia Fry.  

 

3. BOARD ELECTION OF OFFICERS for 2016-2017: 
a. Board Chair- 

Commissioner Gearin nominated Kathy Kleczek for Board Chair 
Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 

 

b. Board Vice Chair 
Commissioner Gearin nominated Paul Lewicki as Board Vice Chair 
Commissioner Servino seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 

 

c. Board Secretary/Treasurer 
Commissioner Widener nominated Carol Gearin as Board Secretary/Treasurer  
Commissioner Lewicki seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 

 

4. CHANGES TO AGENDA- Executive Director Hazen requested that discussion of the purchase of 2 buses be added to the 
agenda. Chair Kleczek placed purchasing discussion under New Business as item C. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT- Representative Deborah Boone made public comment that earlier in the year there had been a 
Transportation Bill that did not move forward due to political reasons that included a piece on Public Transit. Representative 
Boone said she is not on the committee but will be voting on the Transportation Bill and wants to make sure she has up to 
date information from transit providers so she can take this message back to this group. Representative Boone said that Public 
Transit is a piece of the package and is integral to our working as a county. There will be meetings around the state and she 
suggested calling Betsy Johnson who is on the committee to find out more information about them. Chair Kleczek thanked 
Representative Boone for attending and for her support.  

 

6. PUBLIC HEARING-LONG RANGE COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN- Stephanie from Nelson Nygaard 
handed out the updated summary to the original Transportation Plan that had been presented at the July 28th Board Meeting. 
Stephanie reviewed each of the additions or changes contained in the update. Chair Kleczek asked for public input. There was 
a question about when there would be service on Saturdays in Astoria. Chair Kleczek answered saying that this is part of the 
future plans. Stephanie will make the final changes to the plan and it will be presented to the Board for final approval at the 
September Board meeting. The Board requested the changes to the plan be highlighted.  
 

7. APPROVAL OF JULY 28, 2016 MEETING MINUTES- Chair Kleczek requested that the praise given to Mary Parker by 
the Board for the new schedules and maps be added to the July minutes. 

 

Commissioner Servino moved to approve the July Board minutes with requested addition 
Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

August 25, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

2



 
8. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

a. Commissioner Lewicki- Reported that he thought the new SETD Coasters being used to market services are 
fantastic.  

b. Commissioner Widener- Reported that he seconded Commissioner Lewicki’s comment.   
c. Commissioner Gearin- Reported that she attended the Ridecare Committee meeting and that it has been interesting 

to meet the people who are running our transportation, hear them talk and see what they are doing especially when 
we are looking at costs. Commissioner Gearin also said she would third Commissioner Lewicki’s comment on the 
coasters.  

d. Commissioner Servino- No comment 
e. Commissioner Kleczek- Commented on what a difference it has made and what a huge hole there is to fill with 

Commissioner Goforth no longer being with us and wanted to keep the Board on track in memorializing her service 
at SETD. Chair Kleczek also reported that Rae’s memorial service will be on September 18th at 1:00 PM at the 
Holiday Inn Express in Astoria.  
 

9. FINANCIAL REPORTS-JULY 2016- Al reported that the July financial numbers are light on the expenses and revenues 
because they are on an accrual basis. There was discussion on how monthly budgeting and expenses are being reported 
during the current fiscal year.  

Commissioner Lewicki moved to approve the July 2016 Financial Report 
Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion- Chair Kleczek asked if Al had looked into seeing if there would be any benefit to billing for the 
parking spaces on a quarterly basis. Al reported he had looked into changing the billing but there would not 
be any benefit to a change.  
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 

 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Financial Review Report- Executive Director Hazen reported that auditors Boldt. Carlisle and Smith have finished 
the review of the financial problems that the District has which occurred during the transition in finance officers and 
the setup of the new Quick Books program by the previous finance officer. Al reported that there were no surprises 
in the report. Boldt, Carlisle and Smith cannot make the recommended corrections as they are our going to continue 
to be the District’s auditors.  Al has contacted John Carlson to make the required corrections. Al explained that some 
of the issues were due to entries that were made after the fiscal cut off in June and entries continued to be made in 
the old Quick Books after the new Quick Books was set up.  Al believes that the setup of the new Quick Books was 
done in a rush and the files that had to be entered into the new system were huge. Commissioner Lewicki requested 
that there be a final report sent by the auditors that says that all of their recommended corrections have been made. 
Commissioner Servino asked what precipitated the change to new Quick Books. Al said he was told that the old 
Quick Books was corrupt. Commissioner Servino asked if we are currently using the latest version of Quick Books. 
Al said no we are using Enterprise 14 which is on our local server. Commissioner Gearin asked if the server is 
backed up every night. Al and John said that Konner has set up a backup system for Quick Books. Chair Kleczek 
asked that the Board receive verification that Quick Books is being backed up. Executive Director Hazen verified 
with Konner that Quick Books is backed up. The Board requested that there be a business reason for changing to 
another accounting system and it be coordinated when an upgrade is due.  Executive Director Hazen verified that the 
Sage accounting system was a recommendation from the ODOT Compliance Review findings and it has been 
budgeted for. Al will verify if SETD is charged for scheduled Quick Books updates.  
 

b. Board Member Sub-Committee Assignments- Chair Kleczek appointed the following Commissioners: 
 

 Ride Care Advisory Committee- Commissioner Gearin 
 Senior and Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee- Commissioner Widener and Commissioner 

Gaebel 
 Board Policy Committee- Commissioner Gearin, Commissioner Servino and Chair Kleczek 
 Executive Director Evaluation Committee- Chair Kleczek, Vice Chair Lewicki and Secretary/Treasurer 

Gearin 
 Northwest Oregon Area Commission on Transportation- Chair Kleczek  

 
c. Rider Appreciation Day- There was Board discussion about dedicating the 2017 Rider Appreciation Day in January 

to honor of Rae Goforth and to further support a plans for a plaque dedicated to Rae for her work in Union Town.   
Commissioner Gearin moved that staff move forward in dedicating the 2017 Rider Appreciation Day to 
Rae Goforth 
Commissioner Lewicki seconded the motion  

2 
 

3



 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all commissioners present 
 

Commissioner Lewicki asked that the process that Victor Kee had started in dedicating the transit plaza to Bob 
Gannaway also be looked into. Executive Director Hazen said he will contact Victor about where the project stands 
at this point.  

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

a.  November-December Meeting Date- Chair Kleczek suggested combining the November and December Board 
meetings into one Board meeting. Board consensus was to have the combined meeting on December 8th.   

  
 

b. Update Bank Signature Authority- Executive Director Hazen asked the Board to approve the addition of 
Commissioner Gaebel as a signer and approve the removal of Rae Goforth as a signer on all District bank accounts. 
The Board signing changes and a copy of the August Board Minutes will be brought to the bank following approval 
of the minutes in September.  

Commissioner Lewicki moved to add Commissioner Gaebel as a signer and remove Rae Goforth as a 
signer on all of the District bank accounts.  
Commissioner Servino seconded the motion 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 
 
Chair Kleczek reported for the minutes that Commissioners Lewicki, Widener, MacDonald, Servino, 
Gaebel, Gearin and Chair Kleczek are approved signers on all District’s bank accounts. 
 
 
 

c. Purchase of New Used Buses- Executive Director Hazen reported that Scott Earl’s had found 2 buses for sale in 
Washington and went and looked at their condition. They ran well and were in good working order with about 
300,000 miles on one and 750,000 on the other. Executive Director Hazen is proposing that the Board approve the 
purchase of the 2 buses which will be used as back up for break downs and during cruise ship season.  The 
combined purchase price will not exceed $25,000. Chair Kleczek asked if the buses are up to code for wheelchair 
access and security since they are from 1998. Scott said he will add new tie downs but the buses meet current 
wheelchair securement standards.   

Commissioner Lewicki moved to approve the recommendation by staff to approve the purchase of 2 used 
buses with the combined price not to exceed $25,000.  
Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion-Commissioner Gearin asked that someone from SETD check the buses out and ride in them 
before the purchase. Commissioner Servino asked if there is  money in the budget for a purchase like this. 
Executive Director Hazen said yes.  
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 

 
12. CORRESPONDENCE- Mail items were distributed to Board members. 

 
13. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen reported that the RFQ process for computer services has 

been narrowed down to 2 consultants. There was discussion on what the RFQ for providing computer services asks for. 
Commissioner Lewicki asked if the consultants would manage both the existing hardware and software. Executive Director 
Hazen said they would but the website is not included. Chair Kleczek said the way the RFQ is being presented made her 
uneasy and she has concerns that it may be too vague which makes her nervous due to what happened with the previous 
contract. Commissioner Lewicki said he shares some of the same concerns as Kathy because SETD was burned before 
because the specifics were not specific, however outsourcing makes sense financially if the contract is correct. Chair Lewicki 
commented that if the new service wants to make upgrades and we do not have staff on board that has the technical 
experience to debate the changes, we could be spending money we cannot justify. Executive Director Hazen read the RFQ 
requirements and said he will be bringing the final RFQ back to the Board for approval. Commissioner Servino requested that 
a copy of the RFQ be emailed to the Board. Commissioner Lewicki asked if onsite training for new software or hardware will 
be provided. Executive Director Hazen said that the service he is looking at will provide this support through a help desk.  

 
14. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS- Reports submitted for July 2016: Operations- Scott Earls, Rider Reports- John Layton, 

Ride Assist- Jennifer Geisler, Mobility Management- Shana Verley, Transportation Options-Shasia Fry, Information 
Technology- John Layton, Marketing and Outreach- Mary Parker, RideCare- Jason Jones and Human Resources- Tami 
Carlson.   

   

3 
 

4



 
Chair Kleczek reported that ODOT has integrated their road reports with the WAZE program and asked if there was a way 
that SETD bus drivers could use their cell phones to sign into WAZE when they are driving the bus so riders could use the 
program to look up the location of the buses. Executive Director Hazen said we cannot require the drivers to use their 
personal phones for that. Chair Kleczek suggested since we are looking at putting technology on the buses, would it be cost 
effective to put cell phones on the buses for this type of technology. Commissioner Gearin asked about putting GPS on the 
buses as that is what the Trolley has done. Executive Director Hazen said that all the buses have GPS but it has been turned 
off due to the high cost and many dead spots in the area, however he also said that Tillamook is currently trying out a new 
rural GPS system which is much improved and reasonably priced and he will be reviewing the results with Doug.  
Commissioner Gearin suggested that phones and phone holders could be purchased for each of the routes and drivers could 
just connect to WAZE when they begin their shift on the route.  
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT- None 
  

 

16. OTHER ITEMS- None 
 
An audio recording of the Sunset Empire Transportation District’s August 2016 Board Meeting is available at:  
www.ridethebus.org-Board of Commissioners- Monthly Meeting Minutes- August 25, 2016. 
 

 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 11:20 AM   Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 

________________________________________________       Date_____________________ 
Commissioner Carol Gearin, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Provide safe, reliable, relevant and sustainable transportation services to  

Clatsop County with professionalism, integrity and courtesy. 

4 
 

5

http://www.ridethebus.org/


Sunset Empire Transportation District 
AUGUST FINANCIAL EXCEPTIONS & INFORMATION REPORT 

For the September 2016 Board of Commissioner’s Meeting  
  
  

NOTE on Reviewing Financials:2 Month = 16.67 % of Fiscal Year Budget*      
                              

Preliminary General Fund Profit and Loss  
 
The District’s General Fund Total YTD Income was $192,992 ($56,562 better than budget), 6.30% of 
annual budget and 175.40% of monthly budget.  YTD Total Materials  & Services  was $54,090 
($67,627 less than budget), 6.48% of annual budget and 48.54% of monthly budget.  Other Expense of 
$13,356 was over budget as it includes as a capital item $209.00 DMV fees for the two new buses .  
 
Revenue 

• 4000 Fares:  Revenues for the month of $23,956 are $2,731 better than budget.  
• 4100 Contract Service-IGA:  Cannon Beach billed for August Monthly Service.    
• 4200 Property Tax: Is Strategic Investment Program Agreement (SIP) service fee. 
• 4250 Timber Sales: Revenues were budgeted at $40,000 per quarter. 
• 4272 Parking: One parking spot remains open, we have distributed a flyer to the businesses in 

the area to let them know there is a parking space available 
• 4300 Interest: Effective July 27, 2016 LGIP increased their interest to .92% from (.875%). 

Fund savings are deposited into LGIP.  The period July to Oct is a slow revenue period thus we 
draw on LGIP.   This is August 2016 interest.  

   
Expense   

• 6200 Payroll Expense: Over budget the result of making the first quarterly workers 
compensation payment in August ($7,139.64 in total). 

• 7000 Provider Payments: Reimbursement to Vets volunteer driver program.  Program is 
gearing up. 

• 7030 Bus Pass: A reclassification to RC from General Fund. 
• 8005 Audit: Progress payment for the 2016 Audit.  
• 8030 Comp-Info -Tech Services: Includes, All Data $1,500, Quick Books annual support fee 

$1,800, GNSA (Great Northern Staff Administrators) monthly time keeper fee from May to 
July 2016.  GNSA was slow in billing for services. 

• 8035 Conf  Training & Travel: Reflects reimbursement of CTAA expenses for the director. 
• 8050 Dues Subscriptions & Fees: Includes: Annual Oregon Transit Association Dues $2,340, 

Cannon Beach, Seaside Downtown Association and Rotary International Seaside. 
• 8061 Equipment Lease: The result of using 2 school buses from Astoria School District for 

Route 11 for 2 hours.     
• 8075 Fuel: Reflects actuals paid in August. One provide was received to be included in this 

report. Also prices continue below budgeted amounts Unleaded prices are about $2.10 and Bio 
diesel about $1.80        

• 8120 Office Supplies: High for the month, yet still below budget YTD.  We will monitor 
spending to keep on budget. 

• 8130 Payroll Processing Fee: Includes August 2016 PR Fees.   
• 8080 Insurance: Was paid in June as due date was July 1, 2016 

*Disclaimer: The percentage of the year’s budget cited above is just to be used as a basic benchmark for the fiscal year. Individual 
budget line items will vary based on expenditure time cycles. Items such as Fuel, Wages, & Bldg. Grounds and Maintenance are more 
consistent on a monthly basis and can be used to gauge against the percentage. However, other items such as Insurance and Legal 
Counsel have irregular payment cycles and therefore are not as good to judge against the percentage.  

Page 1 of 2 
 6



Sunset Empire Transportation District 
AUGUST FINANCIAL EXCEPTIONS & INFORMATION REPORT 

For the September 2016 Board of Commissioner’s Meeting  
  
  

• 8155 Telephone/Internet: Reflects July and August Verizon payments in August and the result 
of General Fund (GF) having larger share of the CoastCom services than budgeted. The GF 
was budgeted 25% of expenses and August reflect an actual usage of 30%.       

• 9700 Capital Expenses: $209 for DMV registration for two new buses.  
• END  
 

Ride Care Fund Profit and Loss  
 
Ride Care’s total Income is 13.86% of total budget.  YTD  revenues of $476,824 are $72,130 less than 
Budget. Which is the result of receiving $42,863 less from CPCCO than budgeted and not recording 
any reimbursements from OHA or DHS as budgeted.  YTD Interest Income of $1,691 was $691 better 
than budgeted partly the result of an increase in the interest rate to .92% from .875% in July.  YTD 
Materials & Services of $365,494 are $98,867 less than budget and are 11.78% of YTD budget. 
 
Expense 

• 6200 Payroll Expenses: Is greater than budget the result of paying the first quarter Workers 
Compensation payment for the year end June 2017 of $1,428.  

• 7000 Contract Providers:  Reflects a slight  increase in sedan rides and an average of 3 mile 
longer trips.  

• 8035 Conf Training & Travel: CTAA expense Reimbursement for Director. 
• 8055 Durable Equip/Small Tools: Reflects Sound proof panels for Ride Care. 
• 8155 Telephone/Internet Service: is better than budget the result of RC actuals representing 

70% of the Coastcom service while budgeted at 75%.     
• END  

    
   

*Disclaimer: The percentage of the year’s budget cited above is just to be used as a basic benchmark for the fiscal year. Individual 
budget line items will vary based on expenditure time cycles. Items such as Fuel, Wages, & Bldg. Grounds and Maintenance are more 
consistent on a monthly basis and can be used to gauge against the percentage. However, other items such as Insurance and Legal 
Counsel have irregular payment cycles and therefore are not as good to judge against the percentage.  

Page 2 of 2 
 7



Sunset Empire Transportation
Profit & Loss Budget Performance General Fund

August 2016 

Month 
Actual

Month 
Budget YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Budget 
to YTD 
Actual Annual Budget

YTD Act 
to 

Budget

YTD Actual % Budget Target:  16.67% Better
Ordinary Income/Expense (Worse)

Income

4000 FARES 23,956.22 21,225.00 49,321.80 48,750.00 571.80 268,300.00 18.38%
4090 DONATIONS/COMMISSIONS 132.66 150.00 132.66 150.00 (17.34) 600.00 22.11%
4100 CONTRACTED SERVICES-IGA 7,557.00 9,664.00 14,291.00 16,864.00 (2,573.00) 180,917.00 7.90%
4200 TAXES 5,750.41 0.00 10,449.48 0.00 10,449.48 925,000.00 1.13%
4250 TIMBER SALES 88,174.59 40,000.00 88,174.59 40,000.00 48,174.59 160,000.00 55.11%
4260 MASS TRANSIT ASSESSMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 55,000.00 0.00%
4270 RENTAL INCOME 0.00

4271 BILLBOARD LEASE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00%
4272 PARKING SPACES 712.50 760.00 1,425.00 1,520.00 (95.00) 9,120.00 15.63%
4273- Charging Station 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 0.00%
4270 RENTAL INCOME - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 4270 RENTAL INCOME 712.50 760.00 1,425.00 1,520.00 (95.00) 10,480.00 13.60%
4300 INTEREST 352.95 400.00 736.21 800.00 (63.79) 4,800.00 15.34%
4310 MISC INCOME 0.00 25.00 25.00
5000 GRANTS 0.00

5001 ODOT GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,128,379.00 0.00%

Total 5000 GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,128,379.00 0.00%
5080 OREGON STF FUNDS 0.00 0.00 28,436.00 28,346.00 90.00 328,560.00 8.65%

Total Income 126,636.33 72,199.00 192,991.74 136,430.00 56,561.74 3,062,036.00 6.30%

Gross Profit 126,636.33 72,199.00 192,991.74 136,430.00 56,561.74 3,062,036.00 6.30%
Expense

1. PERSONNEL SERVICES

6005 SALARIES & WAGES 85,591.51 95,664.00 182,868.18 191,327.00 8,458.82 1,243,631.00 14.70%
6200 PAYROLL EXPENSES 13,947.35 11,816.00 22,687.38 23,632.00 944.62 153,610.00 14.77%
6300 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 17,792.26 24,597.00 41,970.38 49,194.00 7,223.62 295,166.00 14.22%

Total 1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 117,331.12 132,077.00 247,525.94 264,153.00 16,627.06 1,692,407.00 14.63%
2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 0.00

7000 RC PROVIDER PAYMENTS 243.11 1,479.00 272.51 2,958.00 2,685.49 17,750.00 1.54%
7030 BUS PASSES -300.00 340.00 0.00 680.00 680.00 4,080.00 0.00%
8005 AUDIT 580.00 0.00 580.00 3,000.00 2,420.00 26,160.00 2.22%
8006  ADS (HR JOB POSTING) 290.17 550.00 290.17 700.00 409.83 4,200.00 6.91%
8010 BANK FEES 254.39 250.00 265.29 500.00 234.71 3,005.00 8.83%
8020 BLDING & GROUNDS MAINT 1,715.18 2,114.00 2,424.22 4,228.00 1,803.78 25,373.00 9.55%
 8030 COMP-INFO-TECH SERVICES 4,245.55 3,023.00 4,245.55 3,023.00 (1,222.55) 26,237.00 16.18%
8035 CONF TRAINING & TRAVEL -1,190.63 2,308.00 -150.63 3,408.00 3,558.63 37,042.00 -0.41%
8045 DRUG/ALCOHOL/BG CHECKS 85.86 267.00 356.61 530.00 173.39 3,200.00 11.14%
8050 DUES SUBSCRIPTIONS & FEES 2,861.01 2,200.00 2,861.01 2,450.00 (411.01) 9,280.00 30.83%
8053 IGA - DUES AND FEES 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 16,700.00 0.00%
8055 DURABLE EQUIP/SMALL TOOLS 259.99 2,000.00 259.99 2,000.00 1,740.01 16,750.00 1.55%
8061 EQUIPMENT LEASE/RENT 782.21 458.00 1,118.21 920.00 (198.21) 25,500.00 4.39%
8065 EDUCATION/OUTREACH 1,328.79 7,038.00 1,468.54 7,038.00 5,569.46 39,510.00 3.72%
8070 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 4,000.00 0.00%
8072 Election Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00%
8075 FUEL 4,470.95 19,897.00 13,929.59 39,794.00 25,864.41 238,772.00 5.83%
8080 INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,541.00 11,541.00 56,142.00 0.00%
8090 LEGAL ADS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00%
8095 LEGAL COUNSEL 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 6,400.00 0.00%
8100 MEETING EXPENSE 0.00 100.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 1,400.00 0.00%
8120 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,214.43 1,700.00 2,432.19 2,900.00 467.81 15,450.00 15.74%
8130 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 116.20 160.00 233.80 320.00 86.20 2,080.00 11.24%
8135 PRINTING 172.88 4,425.00 172.88 4,425.00 4,252.12 33,950.00 0.51%8



8139 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 4,878.00 0.00 4,878.00 4,878.00 32,850.00 0.00%
8140 SUBGRANT PASS THROUGH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
8150 TAXES/LICENSES/BUS REG FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 330.00 0.00%
8155 TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE 2,430.64 1,775.00 4,993.60 3,550.00 (1,443.60) 21,296.00 23.45%
8160 UNIFORMS 98.70 274.00 197.40 424.00 226.60 5,924.00 3.33%
8165 UTILITIES 1,604.06 1,575.00 1,750.98 3,150.00 1,399.02 21,667.00 8.08%
8170 VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIRS 14,097.45 15,000.00 16,388.28 16,000.00 (388.28) 120,200.00 13.63%

Total 2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 36,360.94 74,911.00 54,090.19 121,717.00 67,626.81 835,048.00 6.48%
Total Expense 153,692.06 206,988.00 301,616.13 385,870.00 84,253.87 2,527,455.00 11.93%

Net Ordinary Income -27,055.73 -134,789.00 -108,624.39 -249,440.00 140,815.61 534,581.00 -20.32%
Other Income/Expense 0.00

0.00
3. OTHER EXPENSES 0.00

9610 CLATSOP BANK-PRINCIPAL 5,387.77 5,392.52 10,749.09 10,796.55 47.46 66,421.11 16.18%
9611 CLATSOP BANK-LOAN INT 1,185.73 1,180.98 2,397.91 2,350.45 (47.46) 12,460.89 19.24%

Total 3. OTHER EXPENSES 6,573.50 6,573.50 13,147.00 13,147.00 0.00 78,882.00 16.67%
9600 DEBT SERVICE & INTERES-FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 334.00 0.00%
9625 SDAO FLEXLEASE-PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,000.00 0.00%
9626 SDAO FLEXLEASE-INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,778.00 0.00%
9700 CAPITAL  EXPENSE 209.00 0.00 209.00 0.00 (209.00) 797,000.00 0.03%
9800 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106,104.00 0.00%
9850 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Expense 6,782.50 6,573.50 13,356.00 13,147.00 (209.00) 1,029,098.00 1.30%

Net Other Income -6,782.50 -6,573.50 -13,356.00 -13,147.00 (209.00) -1,029,098.00 1.30%

Net Income -33,838.23 -141,362.50 -121,980.39 -262,587.00 140,606.61 -494,517.00 24.67%

9



Sunset Empire Transportation
Profit & Loss Budget Performance RideCare

August 2016 

Month 
Actual

Month 
Budget YTD Actual

 YTD 
Budget

YTD Budget 
to YTD Actual  Annual Budget

YTD Act 
to 

Budget

YTD Actual % Budget Target:  16.67% Better
Ordinary Income/Expense (Worse)

Income

4300 INTEREST 863.36 500.00 1,690.69 1,000.00 690.69 6,000.00 28.18%
4500 RC PROVIDER SERVICE REIM 235,258.40 275,160.00 475,132.96 547,953.00 (72,820.04) 3,434,370.00 13.83%
Other Types of Income

Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Types of Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Income 236,121.76 275,660.00 476,823.65 548,953.00 (72,129.35) 3,440,370.00 13.86%

Gross Profit 236,121.76 275,660.00 476,823.65 548,953.00 (72,129.35) 3,440,370.00 13.86%
Expense

1. PERSONNEL SERVICES

6005 SALARIES & WAGES 24,192.52 26,994.66 48,105.64 53,989.49 5,883.85 350,930.63 13.71%
6200 PAYROLL EXPENSES 3,727.91 3,477.29 5,842.18 6,954.58 1,112.40 45,204.75 12.92%
6300 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,596.48 7,492.48 8,828.91 14,984.96 6,156.05 97,402.22 9.06%

Total 1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 31,516.91 37,964.43 62,776.73 75,929.03 13,152.30 493,537.60 12.72%
2. MATERIALS & SERVICES

7000 RC PROVIDER PAYMENTS 232,573.68 222,854.00 348,982.16 443,798.00 94,815.84 2,781,506.00 12.55%
7030 BUS PASSES 1,655.00 1,500.00 2,215.00 3,000.00 785.00 18,000.00 12.31%
7050 DMAP/CCO Annual Adjustment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 140,000.00 0.00%
8005 AUDIT 145.00 0.00 145.00 340.00 195.00 6,540.00 2.22%
8006  ADS (HR JOB POSTING) 290.64 300.00 290.64 300.00 9.36 2,000.00 14.53%
8010 BANK FEES 10.00 14.00 20.00 28.00 8.00 171.00 11.70%
8020 BLDING & GROUNDS MAINT 361.60 683.00 566.61 1,365.00 798.39 8,190.00 6.92%
8030 COMP-INFO-TECH SERVICES 229.16 634.00 229.16 1,268.00 1,038.84 7,609.00 3.01%
8035 CONF TRAINING & TRAVEL -309.15 410.00 -309.15 700.00 1,009.15 6,788.00 -4.55%
8045 DRUG/ALCOHOL/BG CHECKS 0.00 100.00 181.50 200.00 18.50 1,200.00 15.13%
8050 DUES SUBSCRIPTIONS & FEES 4.22 0.00 4.22 0.00 (4.22) 2,170.00 0.19%
8055 DURABLE EQUIP/SMALL TOOLS 3,250.00 3,500.00 3,250.00 3,500.00 250.00 19,700.00 16.50%
8065 EDUCATION/OUTREACH 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 2,400.00 0.00%
8070 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 1,800.00 0.00%
8072 Election Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
8080 INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,742.00 0.00%
8090 LEGAL ADS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
8095 LEGAL COUNSEL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00%
8100 MEETING EXPENSE 0.00 100.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 1,200.00 0.00%
8120 OFFICE SUPPLIES 533.09 537.00 557.59 874.00 316.41 4,050.00 13.77%
8130 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 29.05 40.00 58.45 80.00 21.55 520.00 11.24%
8135 PRINTING 0.00 250.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 3,000.00 0.00%
8139 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 447.00 440.00 447.00 440.00 (7.00) 40,000.00 1.12%
8155 TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE 2,984.62 3,265.00 8,142.20 6,530.00 (1,612.20) 39,184.00 20.78%
8165 UTILITIES 676.62 619.00 713.34 1,238.00 524.66 8,339.00 8.55%

Total 2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 242,880.53 235,446.00 365,493.72 464,561.00 99,067.28 3,101,809.00 11.78%
Total Expense 274,397.44 273,410.43 428,270.45 540,490.03 112,219.58 3,595,346.60 11.91%

Net Ordinary Income -38,275.68 2,249.57 48,553.20 8,462.97 40,090.23 -154,976.60 -31.33%
Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

3. OTHER EXPENSES
9611 CLATSOP BANK-LOAN INT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 3. OTHER EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9600 DEBT SERVICE & INTERES-FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.00 0.00%
9625 SDAO FLEXLEASE-PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00%
9626 SDAO FLEXLEASE-INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,772.00 0.00%
9655 DMAP REPAYMENT AGREEMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 145,373.00 0.00%
9800 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 360,251.00 0.00%
Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -360,251.00 0.00%

Net Income -38,275.68 2,249.57 48,553.20 8,462.97 40,090.23 -515,227.60 -9.42%

10



Balance Sheet  
As of August 31, 2016

ASSETS LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Current Assets Liabilities

Checking/Savings Current Liabilities

1000 SETD GEN FUND BANK ACCTS Accounts Payable

1001 CCB-OPERATING (3943) 2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

1001.1 Cash GF Employee 1,720.00 2010 SETD GENERAL FUND A/P 9,609.43
1001 CCB-OPERATING (3943) - Other 61,987.59 2020 RIDECARE FUND A/P 10,967.80

Total 1001 CCB-OPERATING (3943) 63,707.59 Total 2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 20,577.23

1002 CCB-PAYROLL (3950) 3,712.96 Total Accounts Payable 20,577.23
1005 CCB-VEHICLE SALES ACCT 2,201.99 Other Current Liabilities 106,531.91

1015  HRA FISCAL AGENT 1,592.08 Total Current Liabilities 127,109.14
1020 LGIP (4992) 390,540.05 Long Term Liabilities
1030 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 75,310.56 2800 INTERCOMPANY DUE TO/FROM

Total 1000 SETD GEN FUND BANK ACCTS 537,065.23 2810 DUE TO RIDECARE 435,063.82
1040 TILLS 300.00 2815 DUE TO/(FROM) SETD G F -435,063.82
1050 RIDECARE FUND BANK ACCTS Total 2800 INTERCOMPANY DUE TO/FROM 0.00

1051 CCB-RC OPERATING (3976) 121,075.10 Total Long Term Liabilities 0.00

1055 HRA FISCAL AGENT (RC) 507.92 Total Liabilities 127,109.14
1056 RC LGIP (3959) 1,108,812.13 Equity

Total 1050 RIDECARE FUND BANK ACCTS 1,230,395.15 3000 OPENING BALANCE EQUITY 651,014.34

Total Checking/Savings 1,767,760.38 3100 NWRC PRIOR PERIOD ADJUST -136,476.00
Accounts Receivable 3900 RETAINED EARNINGS 1,508,303.53

1200 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 245,529.30 Net Income -73,427.19
1250 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLES 36,439.12 Total Equity 1,949,414.68

Total Accounts Receivable 281,968.42 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,076,523.82
Other Current Assets

1049 VALIC 3,546.83
1400 PREPAID EXPENSES 19,062.34
1500 UNDEPOSITED FUNDS 4,185.85

Total Other Current Assets 26,795.02
Total Current Assets 2,076,523.82

TOTAL ASSETS 2,076,523.82

11



Sunset Empire Transportation
Accounts Receivable 

As of August 31, 2016 

Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

CC PAROL-PROBATION 3,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,150.00
CITY OF CANNON BEACH - A/R 7,557.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,557.00
CLATSOP COUNTY TREASURER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,439.12 36,439.12
CLATSOP CRUISE HOSTS 420.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 420.00
COLUMBIA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DIST 0.00 0.00 18,768.80 0.00 0.00 18,768.80
DHS - CHILD WELFARE-CLATSOP 567.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 567.00
DSHS-CHILDRENS ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 0.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.00
HULTQUIST,  JUANITA 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ISN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -330.00 -330.00
ODOT 0.00 0.00 0.00 212,179.00 0.00 212,179.00
OR DHS - ASTORIA - SSP/0401 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OR TREASURY 0.00 0.00 -33,749.28 33,749.28 0.00 0.00
P-ALLSTATE INSURANCE AGENCY 142.50 142.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 285.00
P-ANDI WARREN INSURANCE AGENCY 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50
P-CELLAR ON 10TH, THE 0.00 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00
P-FARMHOUSE FUNK 0.00 95.00 95.00 0.00 0.00 190.00
P-H&R Block 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -190.00 -95.00
P-HOMESPUN QUILTS 0.00 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00
P-HOXIE, RONALD 0.00 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50
P-STEINER, MICHELE 0.00 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50
PACIFIC NW WORKS 0.00 0.00 45.00 5.00 45.00 95.00
RC-SETD PARA 0.00 -1,401.00 0.00 1,401.00 0.00 0.00
TPJCC 0.00 2,365.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,365.00

TOTAL 11,979.00 1,531.50 -14,840.48 247,334.28 35,964.12 281,968.42

12



-

13



Sunset Empire Transportation
Accounts Payable 

As of August 31, 2016 

General Fund Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

ASTORIA, CITY OF 604.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 604.43
DMV-Astoria 209.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 209.00
JACKSON & SON OIL, INC. 4,470.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,470.95
MTR WESTERN BUS 1,190.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,190.09
NW NATURAL 15.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.72
OREGON TRANSIT ASSOCIATION 2,340.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,340.00
PACIFICSOURCE ADMINISTRATORS 0.00 -162.50 0.00 162.50 0.00 0.00
SDIS 0.00 -27,491.47 0.00 27,491.47 0.00 0.00
SNOW & SNOW ATTORNEYS AT LAW 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
VERIZON WIRELESS 779.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 779.24

TOTAL General Fund 9,609.43 -27,653.97 0.00 27,653.97 0.00 9,609.43

Ride Care
RC-ELLIOTT'S TRANSPORT 3,031.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,031.50
RC-HOT SHOT TRANSPORTATION 5,218.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,218.79
RC-SETD-PASSES 1,260.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,260.00
RC-TRUCKE'S 1 STOP 1,457.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,457.51

Total Ride Care 10,967.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,967.80

Total AP 20,577.23 (27,653.97) 0.00 27,653.97 0.00 20,577.23

14



Sunset Empire Transportation
Checks Over $5,000

8/31/2016

Type Num Date Name Original Amount
 

Bill Pmt -Check 3994 09/07/2016 RC-HOT SHOT TRANSPORTATION -5,218.79

Bill Pmt -Check 3995 09/07/2016 RC-K & M MEDIVAN -12,313.45

Bill Pmt -Check 3996 09/07/2016 RC-MEDIX AMBULANCE -5,457.00

Bill Pmt -Check 4000 09/07/2016 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC -13,688.89

Bill Pmt -Check 4006 09/14/2016 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION -9,531.75

Bill Pmt -Check 4007 09/14/2016 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC -13,803.32

Check CCB83116 08/31/2016 CLATSOP COMMINITY BANK 6,573.50

15



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8.a Long Range Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

The edits to the plan have been made and so we now have the final product. Due to the size of 
the document, the redlined version will be sent to you separately. 

We are recommending that the Board adopt the Long Range Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan. 

 

 

16



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda 8.b Information Technology Services (IT) 

At last month’s Board meeting, we discussed IT and options for the District.  The Board asked to 
see the RFQ so I have attached it and the two proposals that I narrowed down from the three 
received.  The one I did not move forward only submitted a letter saying that they were 
interested.  They didn’t provide any information or submit a price.  The two finalists are 
MindShift and MossyTech.  I met face to face with each company and gave them a tour of our 
set up.  Neither company submitted any questions. 

I reviewed both proposals and had John and Al do it as well.  John was also part of the interview 
team with Tami that interviewed the two candidates that submitted applications for the IT 
Specialist position should we choose to go that route.  Neither interviewee made it to the second 
round of interviews which would’ve been done by me.  After we reviewed the proposals 
submitted we all agreed that MindShift would be our recommendation.  Their proposal is also the 
lower cost one as well.   

As you know, John wears multiple hats by running the transit center, help Al with accounts 
payable, and doing IS work since Konnor left.  We are both in agreement that if we reduce his 
workload by removing accounts payable, he will be able to handle any of the minor issues that 
may come up.  Accounts payable processing will go back to Al for him to handle like we did 
when Diane was here. 

Our recommendation is that the Board approve contracting with MindShift as our IT service 
provider.  Al, John and I welcome any questions you may have.   

 

 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8.c Transcription Update   

We have uploaded the meeting recording from June to three companies.  As of September 14th, 
we have only received back one transcription.  One of the other companies is on step 10 of 19 
steps as of September 13th and I just received verification that the third company has received the 
upload.  When we receive the other two, we will send all three of them to you and have them as 
an agenda item for October. 

104



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Al Hernandez 

Re: Agenda Item 8.d QuickBooks Update 

At last month’s meeting, there was discussion about QuickBooks.  One of the questions that the 
Board asked was if it was being backed up.  John and I indicated that it was but the Board 
wanted verification of the backup.  Jeff verified with Konnor that it is being backed up to Mozy 
in the cloud.  Also, the Board wanted to know if SETD is charged for scheduled QuickBooks 
updates.  After checking with QuickBooks (Jona at QB) she confirmed that there would be no 
charge for upgrading to a newer version of QuickBooks since we already pay an annual 
maintenance (support) fee.  

105



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8.e Used Bus Purchases 

At last month’s Board meeting we sought and received approval from the Board to purchase two 
used buses.  We have received the two used buses that we purchased from NW Bus Sales.  We 
were able to get them for $25,000 which included the trip and document fees. The original price 
was $27,250 for both plus $360 in fees for a total of $27,610.   

 

106



107



108



109



110



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 8.g Website Update 

 

The Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) has issued the request for proposals (RFP) to 
update the North by Northwest Connector’s website.  This project was selected during the 
competitive Special Transportation Fund (STF) process as a statewide project.  The new website 
will be built on a platform that all public transportation agencies throughout Oregon will be able 
to use to build/update their respective websites.  It will be modeled after the Mendocino Transit’s 
website that we found to be very user friendly.  The RFP calls for the new website to be 
functional by March of 2017.  NWOTA has held off with some of its marketing until the new 
website is up and running.  We agreed that having it ready in March will give us the opportunity 
to do some targeted marketing campaigns.   
 
I know that the Board has expressed its wishes that we have a more functional website.  
Previously, when we talked with iFocus to work on upgrades, they pushed back on having 
deliverables in place and having our website be on a platform that we could make the easy 
changes and updates.  We were not satisfied with their stance.  During that same time, NWOTA 
was working with M2 to create a new Connector website.  I felt we were part of a dog and pony 
show when they came to us in person to give a presentation.  After the presentation, I looked at 
their own website and found it to be a very poorly put together website with a lot of errors.  I 
shared with our partners my concern that if they can’t even have a decent website themselves, 
what would ours end up looking like?  We agreed to stop the process with M2.  We learned that 
ODOT had been discussing the idea of them setting up a platform for agencies to build their 
respective websites off of.  Our concern was the length of time that ODOT would’ve taken to put 
it in place.  This became the catalyst for us to take it on ourselves through the STF process. 
 
During this time, we have done a lot of work on our website to make it more functional and user 
friendly.  Would I have liked to have a new website in place last year?  Absolutely, but I felt that 
it was in the best interest of the District to wait until NWOTA’s website was built so we didn’t 
have to spend the $80,000 to build our own.  We will end up spending considerably less which is 
an efficient use of tax dollars and a story that we will be able to share with our constituents. 
 
 

111



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Tami Carlson 

Re: Agenda Item 9.a Executive Director Annual Evaluation Process Discussion 

It is that time of year that the Board needs to evaluate Jeff’s performance.  Attached is the Board 
Policy in regards to the Executive Director Evaluation.  In his Employment Agreement, it states 
that his evaluation will be given in November.  It also shows the criteria that needs to be 
evaluated.  Since the Board doesn’t meet in November because of the Thanksgiving Holiday, the 
Board needs to decide if it should be given in October or early December.  I would like direction 
as to the process you want to go through this year and what kind of evaluation document you 
would like to utilize. I will also need to know what other information you need from me in 
regards to compensation.  Unfortunately, I will not be at the meeting because of a medical 
appointment.  Please provide the direction to Mary so she can share it with me. 

112



113



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Board Policy Committee Meeting  

We are asking that the Board Policy Committee review their calendars so we can discuss a date 
that will work for both the Committee members and staff. 

We would also like to hear from the Board any Board Policies you think should be discussed by 
the committee.  Mary and I have some suggestions for the Committee. 

114



Date: September 14, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 9.d Transit Asset Management (TAM) 

I’ve mentioned the new TAM rule issued by the Federal Transit Agency (FTA) in previous 
weekly reports.  One of the things that is needed is for agencies to designate an Accountable 
Executive.  The FTA’s definition of an Accountable Executive is: 

An Accountable Executive should be a transit provider’s chief executive; this person is often 
the CEO or GM. FTA understands that at many smaller transit providers, roles and 
responsibilities are more fluid. However, FTA does believe that, even in circumstances where 
responsibilities are either shared or delegated, there must be one primary decision-maker who 
is ultimately responsible for both transit asset management and safety. It is a basic 
management tenet that accountabilities flow top-down. Therefore, as a management system, 
transit asset management requires that accountability reside with an operator’s top executive. 

The accountable executive will be responsible for: 

• Participating in the group TAM plan creation or writing their own TAM plan 
• Carrying out the TAM plan or group Tam Plan in their agency 
• Setting meaningful State of Good Repair targets, or participating in setting the group 

TAM plan targets 
• Making informed investment decision (i.e., prioritizing rolling stock replacements) 

I have attached a handout that was given to the Public Transportation Advisory Committee 
(PTAC) on Monday with some information.   

I am recommending that the Board designate the Executive Director as the Accountable 
Executive. 

115



116



117



118



119



Executive Director Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting  
Jeff Hazen 
 
-Transportation Bill: 
I will be attending the Joint Interim Committee on Transportation Preservation and 
Modernization’s roundtable discussion and public hearing in Newport on September 15th.  This 
is the group that Representative Boone mentioned at the Board’s August meeting.  I will discuss 
how it went at the Board meeting. 
 
-Senior and Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee: 
As you may recall, when the Board selected Commissioner Gaebel to replace Commissioner 
Goforth’s seat, it was suggested to the other applicant, Pamela Alegria apply for the vacant 
position on the S&D Committee.  I’m pleased to report that she has turned in an application for 
that and we will present it to the Committee at their October meeting. 
 
-Bob Gannaway Recognition: 
Since I’ve been gone for a couple of weeks, I haven’t had the opportunity to talk with Victor Kee 
but will be as soon as I can carve out some time. 
 
-Waze App: 
It was suggested that we have smart phones on the routes and have the Waze App used on the 
phones.  I contacted them shortly after last month’s meeting to find out if this is an allowable use 
of their App.  I read on their community forum that the App should not be used on buses as is 
throws their average speed calculations off.  I finally received an email from them this week 
referring me to a specific person so I have sent an email off to him to clarify our ability to use it. 
 
-Summer Traffic: 
I don’t believe that traffic was as bad this summer as it was last year.  Of course as I’m writing 
this, they are doing paving on the Young’s Bay Bridge causing significant delays this week! 
 
-Columbia County Rider: 
Columbia County is looking for a new transportation manager.  The one they hired recently is no 
longer employed by them. 
 
-Fleet 
We have received the two new buses that we received funding through the 5339 Grant process.  
These are the smaller ones that will be used for both fixed route and paratransit as needed.  We 
are still awaiting the ODOT agreement for the 5339 Grant cycle that we just went through and 
were awarded funding for two of the four buses we requested.  The RFQ for the two paratransit 
vans we were awarded funding for will be going out this week.   
 
 

120



Weekly Reports: 
8/22/16 
Over the past couple of weeks, the FTA has been putting on webinars in regards to the new TAM 
(Transit Asset Management) rule that is now in place.  TAM is a model that uses asset condition 
to help prioritize funding to achieve or maintain transit networks in a state of good repair.  I’ve 
been able to watch some but not all of them due to schedule conflicts.  There are having 8 of 
them.  I will be able to watch the ones I missed after they have completed the last one.  They will 
be posting them online.  At last week’s Executive Committee meeting of the PTAC (Public 
Transportation Advisory Committee) Christine West from ODOT gave us an update on it.  As a 
rural agency, we are classified as a Tier II provider and we will be part of the group that ODOT 
will be setting up and managing.  They are allowed to do this by the FTA because they realize 
that smaller rural agencies don’t have the resources and manpower to manage the program.  
There will be additional reporting requirements that we have but it shouldn’t be too cumbersome 
for us to handle.  There will be a training for staff at the OTA conference next year to help guide 
us. 
 
Last week was the deadline for receiving responses from the RFQ for managed information 
technology systems.  We received 3 responses and I will be reviewing them this week.  We also 
received either 2 or 3 applications for an IT Specialist.  Those interviews are planned for this 
week.  Once those are complete and I have reviewed the responses from the RFQ, I’ll make a 
determination of which direction we will take. 
 
On a personal note, Kathy has approved my taking 2 weeks off beginning this upcoming 
weekend.  We are moving from Hammond to the Westport house where we originally planned 
on living when I retire several years from now.  The house has a few acres with it so we will be 
enjoying the country life and developing a green thumb.  It currently has 2 apple trees, a pear tree 
and a plum tree.  We look forward to growing a variety of vegetables and some other fruits.  The 
timing worked out for us to move out there now.  I have been working on the weekends the last 
couple of months emptying that house along with another house in Hammond that we are selling.  
Trying to do it on weekends isn’t the most efficient way to move so we are going to dive in and 
get it done!  I will be available by phone if I’m needed and will be stopping by on the transit 
center on Tuesday and Thursday mornings both weeks to sign the mail and sign checks. 
 
We had the new cubicles installed in the call center at RideCare.  Here’s a brief video of it. 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bQG2yVcuh7I 

121

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bQG2yVcuh7I


Rider Report 
September Board Meeting  
John Layton 
 
“The Bus” (Fixed Route) Highlights: 

• 19,651 people used fixed routes in August for an average of 633.9 riders per day.  
• 13.9% increase in average passengers who rode fixed routes per day from last August 

(556.6 to 633.9) 
• 10.2 people per hour, on average, got on any fixed route at any time that the bus runs in 

August.  No change (10.2 to 10.2) from last August.  
• 17.9% decrease in the ratio of elderly/disabled riders from last August (23.2% to 19.2%) 

 
RideAssist Highlights: 
 

• 680 rides were provided by RideAssist in August for an average of 28.3 rides per day. 
• 8.3% increase in average RideAssist passengers per day from last August (26.2 to 28.3) 
• 4.1% decrease in all ADA Paratransit rides from last August (516 to 495) 

 
Clatsop Care Center Health District Highlights: 
 

• 0 people were provided by SETD in August for an average of 0 riders per day. 
 
System Highlights: 
 

• 20,331 people used Sunset Empire Transportation in August for an average of 655.8 
riders per day. 

• 14.4% increase in all average passengers per day from last August (573.3 to 655.8) 

122



Rider Graphs

September Board Meeting Report

John Layton

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Aug-15

SETD Rides

Shuttles

Paratransit

Route 10

Route 11

Route 12

Route 15

Route 21

Route 101

Columbia

Pacific

Street Car

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Rider Breakdown by Route

Senior

Disabled

Passes

Student

Job Corp

Veterans

123



Operations Report 
September Board Meeting  
Scott Earls          

          

1. I am still working on the CSSO (Certified Safety and Security Officer) review process to 
get SETD certified. Running short on time limit. 

2. We are through most of the busy summer weekends and the fish seem to be moving 
upriver so we hopefully will see a slowdown in boat and R/V traffic. 

3. We have received the two new Buses. They look very nice, I hope to bring one to the 
Sept. Board meeting. 

4. Steve Weinert and myself drove the used buses back from Federal Way. They drove great 
and I think we should be able to see the value in their purchase. 

5. We should be in good shape to provide anything needed for the Rt. 11 & 12 rush for Sept. 
and Oct. 

6. Looking to the near future we are close to sending the request for bid on the two 
ParaTransit Vans. We will start hiring and training as needed for two new drivers. 

7. We saw a dip in ridership numbers for the end of Aug. but that was related to Rt.11 and 
12 numbers. If you look at our year round routes we still had growth in ridership. 

                                                                               
 
                                                     
 

 

 

 

 

124



RIDE ASSIST Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting 
Jennifer Geisler 
 
• In August, Paratransit had 680 rides for an average of 28 rides per day. 

There was an 8.3% increase in all RideAssist rides from August 2015.  
The ADA rides decreased 4.1% from last August, 516 rides to 495 ADA rides. 
We provided 90 RideCare rides for August. 
  

• Dial-A-Ride had two rides in the month of August.  
 

• There were seven new ADA Paratransit applications received.  Two used the ADA service in 
their first month.  Two live in the Miles Crossing area that is zoned Dial-A-Ride service area 
only.   
 

• The Paratransit drivers sold 4 orange ticket books and 16 green ticket books. 
 
• There were 141 veteran rides given. 

 
• There were 0 ride denials for ADA Paratransit rides. 

 
• For the month of August, we provided four ADA weekend ride requests. 

 
• For the months of July and August our Paratransit drivers received $45 in tips.  This shows the 

appreciation our clients have for the service we provide. 
 

 
 

Paratransit Fares Collected for June 
• Para-transit Fares:  $912.00 
• Tickets Collected:  $532.00 
• Medicaid Collected: $1541.00 
• Ticket books sold:  $492.00   

125



Marketing and Outreach Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting  
Mary Parker 
 
SETD Outreach and Marketing has to cover a lot of variables and a lot of territory …literally. 
We focus our efforts in many direction and on many levels. We are guided by requirements from 
our funding sources, laws, state, federal, and local community needs, transit needs, physical 
needs and our own internal needs. I am so hopeful that this new fiscal year with our fresh 
budgets, our fresh minds, our fresh outlook and our combined efforts that we will have a clearer 
and more organized plan in “reaching out” to our community in every way we can to improve 
our relationship, our ridership and our positive influence and our assistance in supporting and 
improving lives and lifestyles in our region.  

Together we are stronger. Shana, Shasia and I are the official SETD Outreach Team. We have 
separate titles and focuses but common goals. We have been and will be working together to 
develop a presentation program including a packet of outreach materials about our services that 
is designed to be usable and interchangeable by staff, readily available and in supply so that we 
can respond even on short notice to make a presentation and can provide to these packets to 
others in community as well so that our service information is always readily available to the 
share. Our presentation packet will include a Transit Training signup sheet that offers further, 
one on one or group training. We will also ask participants to evaluate the presentations so we 
get feedback and can make sure that our training format and materials have been helpful and 
easy to understand.  

We are planning to make a presentation for the Board at the October Board Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

   

 

126



Mobility Management Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting 
Shana Verley 
 
*Training and Research  
 This month I completed the courses Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation and First Aid 

I participated in the following webinars: 101 Webinar Series: Rides to Wellness RTAP, 
Innovations in Accessible Mobility Grant Applicants, Cornell Yang Tan Institute 
Webinar: ADA & Aging Americans, A More Efficient Model for ADA Paratransit 
Delivery, 101 Webinar Series: Title VI Requirements, RTAP Customer Driven Service. 

*Outreach 
This month I worked on putting together packets that contain brochures, schedules, 
applications, and other information mostly pertaining to the SETD programs, for AARP, 
Extraordinary Living, and Travel Training.  

 
 
 

127



Transportation Options Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting  
Shasia Fry 
 
Safe Routes to School 
 
Now that School has started and Administration is back in office, I am going to be resending out 
emails to the schools and districts, asking them to participate in Walk and Bike to School day in 
October. I was not very successful with past emails sent out in July, due to administration being 
away. 
 
I have been meeting regularly with Dale Mcdowell from Seaside Public works. He is very 
interested in starting a Safe Routes to School program. Dale has tried in the past to start a Safe 
Routes program but due to changes in location and administration the school was not ready to 
begin a program. We requested to give a presentation to the school board in September to gain 
support of the program. The board approved our request and we will be presenting on the 20th of 
September. I have been preparing packets and the presentation with help from the Oregon Safe 
Routes to School chapter. 
 
Drive Less Oregon Challenge 
 
The Oregon Drive Less Challenge begins the 1st of October. Kelly Bantle and I have finalized 
our media marketing materials and have sent our newspaper inserts to print. These inserts will be 
in both the Daily Astoria and Hip Fish. We have approved and ordered our collateral for the 
challenge and it should be delivered the 4th week of September. 
 
I have been in contact with Columbia and Tillamook County about their need and ideas for 
marketing outreach for the challenge. Both transit agencies have agreed to posting flyers and 
information up for their riders in shelters and on the buses. I will be doing the same for Sunset 
Empire. I will be doing 2 full weeks of challenge outreach starting the 4th week of September. I 
will be riding the buses in all 3 counties signing people up, as well as attending 2 community 
meetings to spread the word. 
 
Travel Training 
 
Shana and I have been working closely together on creating a travel training curriculum. We 
have been working on slide show presentation that explains the different program that SETD 
offers. I will be assisting her in her Travel Training at the Senior Center on Sept. 15th 
 
 

128



Information Technology Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting  
John Layton 
 
Admin 

• We added paging to our phone system which allows a person to page all the phones at both offices.  This 
is nice when trying to track down someone and you know they are at the other building.   

 
Operations 

• We will get the route signs ready for the new buses. 
• The Operation Manager, Scott, needs to get a new computer soon.  It is one of the oldest computers we 

have left in the company.  We will need to wait until later in the year when we have more money in the 
bank. 
 

Mobility: 
• Our Mobility Management Coordinator, Shana, has need of a new computer.  We have it budgeted but 

we are at the time of year where we get a little tight with cash.  We will be looking to get her a new 
laptop later in next quarter. 

 
RideCare: 

• The phone system is just about ready to add recording of phone calls.  This will allow RideCare to have 
backup to when clients accuse them of wrong doing.  Also, it will allow for additional training when our 
workers make errors. 

• We are still negotiating with Byron (original programmer of OBSS) and his son Nick on a plan to 
support and update OBSS.  There has been no decision made about continuing with OBSS or going a 
different direction. 

• Sarah has a new computer. 
• Several of the phone headsets are losing their charge.  Jason is going to purchase a trial replacement 

battery to see if they will be a good, low cost, solution for the other headsets. 
• There was an issue with us receiving large faxes.  I contacted the phone company and I believe we got it 

worked out. 
 
Transportation Options: 

• Our Transportation Options Specialist, Shasia, has need of a new computer (buttons have fallen off of 
it).  We have it budgeted but we are at the time of year where we get a little tight with cash.  We will be 
looking to get her a new laptop later in next quarter. 

 
Misc: 

• I’m slowly learning all the systems that Konnor put into place.  It has been a challenge to relearn all the 
systems while doing my job but my staff has done a great job covering for me while I continue the IT 
work. 

129



Human Resource Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting  
Tami Carlson 

 
• August 1st met with Wendy DiChiara from Brown & Brown.  Wendy is our new contact for 

our insurance agent.  We reviewed the renewal for our Worker’s Compensation policy.  Our 
rate increased this year due to a past injury in 2014.  We are focusing on correcting unsafe 
conditions and unsafe behavior through SDAO Online Safety Trainings for all employees.    

 
• The employees had the pleasure of meeting our new Valic Rep. Terry Helland.  Terry took 

the time to meet with employees who chose to do so individually.  We plan to have him back 
in the fall to speak at a driver’s meeting.    

 
• In-house posting for Shop Assistant resulted in the transfer of Curt Dean.  Curt was hired as a 

relief driver in April this year.  Curt has general mechanic skills that he brought with him 
from previous experience.  Congratulations Curt!  

 
• An in-house for a full-time ParaTransit driver resulted in the hiring of Denny Cook. Denny 

replaced Maryanne Champagne who moved to Ops. Assistant last month.  Denny worked for 
SETD from 2009 to 2011 and was rehired in April 2015 as a relief/part-time fixed route 
driver.  Congratulations Denny! 

 
• RideCare interviews continued and we added another CSR/Dispatcher to the team.  Sarah 

Desrochers was rehired this month.  Sarah was a previous employee of RideCare from July 
2014 to May 2015.  Welcome Back Sarah! 

 
• Interviewed two potential candidates for an in-house IT Specialist.  Options are to fill the 

position internally or contracting out IT consulting services for the district.   
 

• August 18th at the monthly driver’s meeting we had a SETD “BBQ” to give thanks to 
employees for all they do.  Thank-you!  

 
• In August Safety Committee members did quarterly building inspections at all SETD sites.  

Astoria Transit Center; Warrenton Office/Bus yard; Seaside Kiosk; RideCare. 
 

• August 30th attended monthly Safety Committee meeting. 
 

• August 31st attended webinar presented by the National RTAP on Substance Abuse Training.  
This is a FTA mandatory training for all safety sensitive employees. 

130



RideCare Report 
September 2016 Board Meeting  
Jason Jones 

• In the month of August, Ride Care hired its 9th team member as a dispatcher/call taker 
CSR.  Sarah Desroches worked for us 15 months ago and was a success.  We were happy 
to hear that she had moved back into the area and was looking for work and set up an 
interview for our final spot. This now completes the manager’s proposal to add 2 new 
staff members to the Ride Care team to help in the ever growing business of Non-
Emergent Medical Transportation.   

• Ride Care also brought back the Volunteer Dispatching Coordinator position to help with 
the increasing responsibilities of maintaining this program.  Donna Buganan was moved 
from dispatching Clatsop County rides to maintaining the Volunteer program.  This 
position calls for very good individual relationship building between us and the 
volunteers.  With a single point of contact for the Volunteers and the State billing office, 
the processing of the Volunteer needs will be more consistent.   

• Jason has continued with the monthly CPCCO Clinical Advisory Panel.  The agenda was 
a little light for this meeting as we were simply maintaining the group.     

• Ride Care experienced a busy August with our total IN/OUT call totals hitting the second 
highest total ever of 10,480 which gave us an average of 456 daily calls.  Because of our 
increased staffing, the average calls per day per call team member was still high (97) but 
with the increased backup made the increased business more manageable.  Our average 
call is now almost 30 seconds better averaging 2.5 minutes per call while members wait 
times have dramatically decreased to an average of 4 minutes.  We want the hold times to 
decrease to less than 3 minutes – our total office experience will grow in the coming 
months and in doing so will drop that hold time.   

 

131


	September 2016 Board Agenda
	5. AUGUST 2016 BOARD MEETING MINUTES DAFT
	7. a SETD Exceptions & Inform Report  Aug  2016 (2)
	7. b QB GF Aug 16 P&L
	Sheet3

	7. c QB RC Aug 16 P&L
	Sheet3

	7. d QB BS Aug 16
	Sheet3

	7.e QB AR Aug 16
	Sheet3

	7. f QB AP Aug 2016
	Sheet3

	7.g QB Checks Over $5,000 Aug 16
	Sheet3

	8.a Long Range Comprehensive Transportation Plan
	8.b Information Technology Services
	8.b2 Information Technology Services
	8.c Transctiption Update
	8.d Quickbooks Update
	8.e Used Bus Purchases
	8.f Internal Revenue Service
	8.g Website Update
	9.a Executive Director Annual Evaluation Process Discussion
	9.a2 B-704 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION
	9.b Board Policy Committee Meeting
	9.d Transit Asset Management
	9.d2 Transit Asset Management
	11. Executive Director Report 9-14-16
	12.a JL - August 2016 Rider Report
	12.b JL - Monthly Op Chart August 2016
	12.c Ops Report Sept 16docx
	12.d RIDE ASSIST AUGUST REPORT
	12.e Marketing and Outreach Sept. 2016 -
	12.f Mobility Management  Aug 2016
	12.g August T.O. Report
	12.h JL - IT Report - August
	12.i August 2016 HR Report
	12.j Ridecare Report for SEPTEMBER meeting



